Dinas a Sir Abertawe



Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod

Pwyllgor Datblygu a Chyflwyno Polisi Economi ac Isadeiledd

- Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgor 5 Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe
- Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 8 Mawrth 2018

Amser: 2.00 pm

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd Mandy Evans

Aelodaeth:

Cynghorwyr: N J Davies, L S Gibbard, P R Hood-Williams, O G James, S M Jones, J W Jones, M A Langstone, W G Lewis, P Lloyd, P M Matthews a/ac T M White

Agenda

Rhif y Dudalen.

1	Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.	
2	Derbyn datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol. www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau	
3	Cofnodion: Cymeradwyo a llofnodi, fel cofnod cywir, gofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol.	1 - 3
4	Cynllun Creu Parth Cerddwyr Stryd y Gwynt. (Llafar).	
5	Tai Cydweithredol - Geoff Bacon.	4 - 13
6	Cynllun Gwaith 2017 - 2018.	14

Cyfarfod Nesaf: Dydd Iau, 12 Ebrill 2018 ar 2.00 pm

Huw Ears

Huw Evans Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Dydd Iau, 1 Mawrth 2018



Agenda Item 3

Cyngor Abertawe Swansea Council

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development and Delivery Committee

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea

Thursday, 11 January 2018 at 2.00 pm

Present: Councillor V M Evans (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) N J Davies J W Jones P Lloyd

Councillor(s) L S Gibbard M A Langstone P M Matthews **Councillor(s)** P R Hood-Williams W G Lewis T M White

Officer(s)

Caritas Adere Phil Holmes Martin Nicholls Jeremy Parkhouse

Senior Lawyer Head of Economic Regeneration and Planning Director of Place Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for Absence

Councillor(s): O G James and S M Jones

33 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, no interests were declared:

34 Minutes.

Resolved that the Minutes of the Economy and Infrastructure Policy Development & Delivery Committee held on 7 December 2017, be approved as a correct record.

35 Economy - Presentation by Phil Holmes, Head of Planning and City Regeneration.

The Head of Planning and City Regeneration provided a detailed and informative presentation on 'Swansea and the City Region....An Economic Perspective'.

Details provided in the presentation included: -

- Introducing Swansea...;
- Connectivity;
- Swansea Statistics and Our Strategic Sectors;
- The Business Base;

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development and Delivery Committee (11.01.2018) Cont'd

- Strategic Employment Sites;
- Innovation, Learning, Quality of Life, Culture, Leisure & Sport;
- Key Regional Statistics;
- The Big Challenges;
- The City Deal Response;
- Key Local Regeneration Activities;
- Working in Partnership;
- Regeneration Programme;
- The Implications of Brexit;
- Welsh Government Prosperity for All and Economic Action Plan.

The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to accordingly. Discussions centred around the following: -

- Productivity, GVA and comparisons with other authorities within the region;
- Transport links, connectivity, potential Swansea Bay Metro and Welsh Government feasibility study looking at inter-connectivity between regions;
- The Tidal Lagoon project; improving the Fabian Way gateway into the city;
- Involving communities outside the city centre in the changes, improving the movement of transport within the city centre and attracting large shops to locate in Swansea;
- The City Deal improving employment prospects, training, skills and confidence of working age people;
- The impact of the universities in Swansea and the work being undertaken;
- Potential for the Felindre site;
- Confidence in the planning process in Swansea.

Resolved that: -

- 1) The contents of the presentation be noted;
- 2) The presentation be circulated to the Committee.

36 Workplan 2017/2018.

The Chair presented an updated Work Plan 2017/18.

She added that the following items had been proposed for the Committee meeting on 8 March 2018: -

- 1) Wind Street Pedestrianisation;
- 2) Green Fleet.

Resolved that: -

- 1) The contents of the report be noted;
- 2) The additional items listed above for 8 March 2018 be added to the Committee Work Plan 2017/18.

Minutes of the Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development and Delivery Committee (11.01.2018) Cont'd

The meeting ended at 3.23 pm

Chair

Agenda Item 5



Report of the Director of Place

Economy & Infrastructure Policy Development and Delivery Committee – 8th March 2018

Swansea Council Co-Operative Housing

Purpose: Report Author:	The report provides a summary of information and opportunities on Co-Operative Housing. Geoff Bacon	
Finance Officer:	Jayne James	
Legal Officer: Access to	Tracey Meredith	
Services Officer:	Sherill Hopkins	
For Information		

1. What is Co-Operative Housing?

Co-operative housing is about communities having democratic control over the decision-making of their homes, neighbourhoods and communities. There are many different forms of co-operative housing – that could apply to all forms of housing tenure (i.e. home ownership, shared ownership or rented housing – either at market or affordable rents). But in all forms of co-operative housing:

- There is a democratic community membership of a housing organisation where all members have an equal nominal share of usually £1 giving them the right to vote on matters affecting the co-op.
- The co-operative housing organisation has control over the homes in some way and in some cases collectively own and manage them.

2. Why do people live in Co-operative Housing?

Research has shown that where communities control their homes cooperatively, strong communities form and the members and residents in co-operative housing are usually more satisfied than in other forms of housing. They often make good common sense decisions, and they operate as strong community businesses.

Co-operative housing is for people who either want to live in a community and have a local community support network around them or for people who support a community ethos – i.e. that local communities should be able to take decisions about their homes. Co-operative housing is also about local people coming together to share their housing costs, usually making the housing more affordable for all.

- There are 7 key principles of Co-operative housing:
- Voluntary and open membership
- Member economic participation
- Democratic member control
- Autonomy and independence
- Education, training and information
- Co-operation amongst co-ops
- Concern for community

3. Who is it for?

Co-operative and Community-Led Housing can be for everyone:

- For people on different income levels
- For particular groups of people
- For different tenures (i.e. renting, owning or asset sharing)
- For building new homes or buying and adapting existing residential or other buildings.
- For managing existing homes, with the possibility of ownership.

Developing housing schemes take time. People involved may have to devote several years from when they have the initial idea of a scheme to when people move into new homes.

But the rewards are high. People who have been involved in developing new CCLH rarely regret it. There are fantastic new CCLH schemes being developed all over the country.

4. How are schemes developed?

There are three general ways that Co-operative schemes are developed, all three of which can produce strong outcomes:

4.1 Grass Roots

A group of people come together to make it happen.

- Some of the strongest co-operative and community-led housing organisations have been developed by grass roots communities coming together to make things happen.
- A community group taking the responsibility to tackle the challenges leads to bonds being formed in the group that can lead to a strong community.
- The community group taking the lead means that it will have more control over decisions about what homes are developed.
- But it can be very challenging doing things this way and it relies on there being some particularly driven individuals being involved.
- It can take a long time to make it happen and a number of challenges will need to be overcome. However, various support is available.
- A community group developing a CCLH scheme will usually want to get local authority support.
- A community group developing a CCLH scheme could make things easier by working with a housing association or some other developer. However, this might bring challenges around who has overall control of the homes developed.
- A community group that wants to take the responsibility for developing a CCLH scheme may find guidance produced by locality particularly useful. They may also be able to get advice from other national support organisations and from existing CCLH organisations.

Examples of grass roots:

- Lilac, Leads
- Ashley Vale, Bristol
- Cohousing, Lancaster

4.2 Existing Community Organisations

An existing housing co-operative, development trust or another community organisation develops a CCLH scheme:

- An existing community organisation may decide it wants to develop CCLH. A housing co-op or a tenant management organisation may want to increase the number of homes available. A development trust or another community organisation may want to extend what it does for its local community and create a stable rental income.
- Existing community organisations may employ staff who will be able to assist in progressing a CCLH scheme. Housing co-

ops or TMOs who buy services from service providers may be able to get assistance through them.

- An existing community organisation developing a CCLH scheme can extend their community-led ethos to the new homes. They will also have a track record of community-led governance and potentially assets that can be used.
- An existing community organisation developing a CCLH scheme will usually want to get local authority support.
- An existing community organisation developing a CCLH scheme may choose to work with a housing association or some other developer, but this might bring different challenges.
- Existing Community Organisations that want to take the responsibility for developing a CCLH scheme will find this guidance and guidance produced by locality particularly useful.

Examples of existing community organisation:

- Bushbury Arms, Wolverhampton
- Marlfield, Redditch
- Langrove Co-op, Merseyside

4.3 Top Down meets Bottom Up

A local authority, housing association or other organisation decide to set up a CCLH scheme and recruit the founder members as homes are developed:

- A local authority, housing association, another organisation, and/or a combination of these organisations may decide that it wishes to set up a CCLH scheme.
- The partners involved can decide that a housing scheme it is developing will be CCLH. This is how most of the UK's CCLH schemes were developed.
- This approach means that the initiating organisation has to recruit and develop founder members to form a CCLH group during the development period.
- It also means that the organisation needs to be prepared to enable the CCLH group to take power over decision-making about how the housing will be managed.
- If done right, this method of developing CCLH can lead to value for money management as well as provide considerable benefits for the community housed.
- This approach leads to individuals participating who otherwise might not get to hear about or be interested in CCLH options.

Examples of top down meets bottom up:

- Old Oak Housing Co-op, Carmarthen
- Overton Road Group, Preston

It is the latter of the three options that appeals to Swansea Council as an entry opportunity into Co-operative Housing and a site has been identified that is of relatively low value, not in the HRA and is able to provide the opportunity for considerable community development.

5. What Support is Available to Swansea Council?

The Welsh Government elected in 2016 has made a commitment to build 20,000 homes during the lifetime of the Government. It has made a housing pact with Community Housing Cymru, the trade body for housing associations in Wales and the Welsh Local Government Association about how to do this. The pact includes potential development of co-operative housing. The Welsh Government provides some capital funding for the development of affordable rented housing and low cost home ownership products, and is further exploring its loan (as opposed to grant) funding programmes to enable available funding go further.

The Welsh Government introduced a co-operative housing programme in 2012 which supported the development of a number of schemes and have renewed their support for the programme under the 2016 Government. This programme has provided flexible revenue funding to develop co-operative and community-led housing schemes through the Wales Co-operative Centre and capital funding through its mainstream programmes.

What this means is that viable co-operative and community-led housing schemes of a variety of types and tenures are likely to receive Welsh Government support.

Local Authorities can play a particularly important role in supporting CCLH and some have developed specific strategies to do so. The Cooperative Council's Innovation Network is currently implementing a Housing Commission to explore how local authority support could be more widely available to CCLH. So it may be possible to get some resource and other national, regional or Local Government support in the UK for co-operative and community-led housing, but getting support may be dependent on a number of local or other factors.

Associations currently supporting interested parties in Wales through the process include:

• Confederation of Co-operative Housing: The UK organisation for housing co-operatives, tenant-controlled housing organisations and regional federations. <u>www.cch.coop</u>.

• Wales Co-operative Centre: a co-operative development agency working across Wales to promote social, financial and digital inclusion through a range of projects. <u>www.walescooperative.org</u>.

6. What can Swansea Council offer to its Citizens?

As an entry point, the model of most interest to Swansea is Top Down, Bottom Up, working with a social landlord to gain their experience along the way. Swansea Council has explored a recent venture with Pobl and Carmarthenshire Council and Pobl has been extremely helpful, providing the team with lots of useful knowledge and experience.

This would be a great learning path, utilising experts who have already delivered a housing co-operative. Staff from Swansea Council could shadow such a process, bringing skills in house for future projects.

Working at grass roots level provides a more bespoke offering, and each proposal would have to be given specific consideration depending on the concept presented.

The opportunity to set up co-operative via existing community organisations is attractive and could be considered at a later date once expertise has been gained working with a third party. This model could be used to encourage better community engagement in existing Council tenant communities.

For any option to progress the proposal would have to affiliate itself with the Council manifesto commitments, the Corporate Plan and well-being objectives.

The Wales Co-operative Centre and the Confederation of Co-operative Housing offer great expertise and have already visited Swansea Council for an initial information sharing meeting.

Both could support any initial proposal to introduce Co-operative Housing to Swansea by means of previous experience; getting started, the policy context, making a visible scheme, developing a sustainable community group, developing the vision, creating policies and procedures, supporting new developments, helping with management and legal structures.

Other areas of support they can provide include:

- Access to expertise and advice about co-operative housing
- Skills development and training opportunities for members of co-operative housing schemes.
- Supplying networking opportunities and sharing good practice.

- Producing research that can inform the development of cooperative housing schemes.
- Developing guidance for future co-operative schemes.

7. Next Stages

- Gain internal opinion on first pilot approach 'top down bottom up' – decide on registered social landlord partner and location.
- Create a Council policy on co-operative housing.

8. Equality and Engagement Implications

An initial EIA screening form was completed (**Appendix A**). There is no requirement for a full EIA form to be completed at this stage as no policy has yet been formulated and any likely implications are unknown.

9. Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

10. Legal Implications

Part 6 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 amended the Housing Act 1988 to allow mutual housing associations to grant assured tenancies. This assists in further developing co-operative housing in Wales and lifts the previous ban on fully mutual co-operatives from granting assured tenancies. The Act also creates an additional ground for possession to allow a lender to fully mutual co-operatives to end an assured tenancy to allow repossession on vacant possession value.

For Information

Background papers: None

Appendix A: EIA Screening Form

Appendix A

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form. If you would like further guidance please contact your directorate support officer or the Access to Services team (see guidance for details).

Section 1					
Which service area and directorate are you from? Service Area: Property					
Directorate: Place					
Q1(a) WHAT	Q1(a) WHAT ARE YOU SCREENING FOR RELEVANCE?				
Service/ Function Proposal	Policy/ Procedure	Project	Strategy	Plan	
(b) Please	name and d	escribe belo	w		
Consideration	n of a Co-op	erative Hous	sing policy.		
	DOES Q1a F ront line delivery	Indirect	front line delivery	Indirect b service d	oack room elivery
(H)		🖂 (M)		🗌 (L)	
(b) DO YO Because they internal		IERS/CLIEN ause they	TS ACCESS Becaus		On an
need to	wa	ant to	automatically everyone in S		basis i.e. Staff
(H)		(M)		(M)	
		ENTIAL IMP High Impact	ACT ON THE Medium Impact		
know Children/young pe	eople (0-18)	(H)	(M)	(L)	(H)
Any other age gro	oup (18+)				\boxtimes
Disability					\boxtimes
Gender reassignr	nent				\boxtimes
Marriage & civil partnership			\boxtimes		
Pregnancy and m	aternity				\boxtimes

Race			\boxtimes
Religion or (non-)belief Sex Sexual Orientation Welsh Language Poverty/social exclusion Carers (inc. young carers) Community cohesion			
Q4 HAVE YOU / WILL Y CONSULTATION A INITIATIVE?		-	THE
	(ii NO, you need to		you should be undertaking e see the guidance)
If yes, please provide deta At this stage, we don't k consider.		his will take. P	remature to
Q5(a) HOW VISIBLE IS TH High visibility (H)	HIS INITIATIVE TO Medium visibili (M)		PUBLIC? w visibility (L)
(b) WHAT IS THE POTI REPUTATION? (Con political, media, publ	nsider the following	impacts – legal,	financial,
High risk ☐ (H)	Medium risk	Lo	w risk ⊠ (L)
Q6 Will this initiative h Council service?	ave an impact (ho	wever minor) oı	n any other
🖂 Yes 🗌 N	o If yes, plea	se provide detai	ls below
Potentially will link ir proces	nto Housing but these sif matters proce		ved in the
Q7 HOW DID YOU SCO Please tick the releva			
MOSTLY H and/or M \longrightarrow HIGH PRIORITY \longrightarrow \Box EIA to be completed			
2		Please g	o to Section
$\begin{array}{l} \text{MOSTLY L} \longrightarrow \text{LO} \\ \text{EIA} \end{array}$	W PRIORITY /	$ ightarrow$ \boxtimes Do no	t complete

NOT RELEVANT

Q8 If you determine that this initiative is not relevant for a full EIA report, you must provide adequate explanation below. In relation to the Council's commitment to the UNCRC, your explanation must demonstrate that the initiative is designed / planned in the best interests of children (0-18 years). For Welsh language, we must maximise positive and minimise adverse effects on the language and its use. Your explanation must also show this where appropriate.

At this stage consideration is simply being given to formulating a policy via PDDC – we will review this screening if this work is progressed, seeking advice from the Access to Services Team.

Section 2

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via email – no electronic signatures or paper copies are needed.

 Screening completed by:

 Name: Geoff Bacon

 Job title: Head of Property

 Date: 22/2/18

 Approval by Head of Service:

 Name: Geoff Bacon

 Position: Head of Property

 Date: 22/2/18

Please return the completed form to <u>accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk</u>



Economy & Infrastructure PDDC – Work Plan for 2017/18

Date of meeting	Agenda items and Format
13/07/17	1. Work Plan Discussion.
10/08/17	2. Overview of City Deal – Phil Holmes.
14/09/17	 Citizen's Card – Sarah Caulkin. Wind Street Pedestrianisation – Lisa Wells.
12/10/17	 Future Transportation Strategy and Housing (Discussion) – Stuart Davies and Ben George.
09/11/17	 River Corridor Opportunities and Development – (explore how the revisions to the previous strategy for this area are developing and the opportunities that are emerging). Huw Mowbray/Gail Evans.
07/12/17	 Housing in the City Centre – Phil Holmes/Carol Morgan/Peter Williams. Homes as Power Stations – Martin Nicholls.
11/01/18	1. Economy – Phil Holmes
08/02/18	Meeting Cancelled
08/03/18	 Wind Street Pedestrianisation – Martin Nicholls/Lisa Wells. Co-operative Housing – Geoff Bacon.
14/04/18	 Green Fleet Presentation of draft report/letter for Cabinet Member.
To be scheduled	 City Deal. River Corridor Strategy – Phil Holmes/Huw Mowbray Future Transportation Strategy (key aspects, regional feasibility study).